
prtpce
Line







E: homeaffairs.gov.au

UNCLASSIFIED

From:  
Sent: Tuesday, 4 June 2019 2:28 PM
To:  < HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>; 
< HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>; 
< HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>
Cc:  < HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>; 
< HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>
Subject: request for AS clearance for Internal Audit recommendation regarding fraud in high risk
visas (IA 1516 12) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 

UNCLASSIFIED

Good Afternoon,
 

 
If you would like any additional information, please don’t hesitate to contact 

 Many thanks for your assistance with this.
 

 
Immigration Integrity Risk & Strategy Section I
Immigration Integrity & Assurance Branch
Immigration Integrity & Community Protection Division
Immigration and Citizenship Services Group
Department of Home Affairs
Ph: 02 
E: @homeaffairs.gov.au

UNCLASSIFIED

PROTECTED
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What integrity measures are in place for the Business Innovation and Investment program? 

• The Department of Home Affairs has robust integrity measures in place to ensure the 
Business Innovation and Investment program (BIIP) is not used for money laundering or by 
economic fugitives.  
 

• Applicants must meet Australia’s security, character, identity and health requirements as 
specified in the Migration Act 1958 and Migration Regulations 1994. Applications undergo 
rigorous assessment using information available to the Department.  

 
• This includes assessing applicants’ financial arrangements and history, and checking their 

details against the AUSTRAC database. Individual cases are referred to AUSTRAC, the 
Australian Federal Police or the Australian Taxation Office for additional verification and 
investigation where appropriate. 
 

• The Department refuses applications where the individual is found to have been involved in 
unacceptable and illegal business and investment activities. 

 
How does the Department ensure the program is not a pathway for foreign interference? 

• All foreign nationals who wish to enter or remain in Australia must meet the requirements of 
the Migration Act 1958 and Migration Regulations 1994, including character and security 
criteria. 

 
Will the outcomes of the 2017 business, investment and talent visas review be published?  
 

• The Department of Home Affairs undertook a review of business, investment and talent 
visas in 2017 in conjunction with Austrade. Key findings of this review are summarised in 
the consultation paper. They were: 

 
o monitoring and evaluation were challenges at the early stage of the BIIP’s maturity, as 

limited data was available 
 

o based on the available evidence, Australia is deriving benefits from business and 
investor migrants. For example, since 2012, Significant Investor visa holders have 
invested more than $11.4 billion in Australia’s economy. 
 

o opportunities to minimise passive investment and drive innovative businesses should 
be explored. 

 
What are the provisional and permanent visa options within the BIIP: 

 
• business people with a range of business skills who want to establish, develop and manage 

a new or existing business in Australia 
 

• investors who want to make a specified investment in the Australian economy and maintain 
business and investment activities in Australia 
 

• entrepreneurs who have a funding agreement from a third party to undertake an 
entrepreneur activity that is proposed to lead to either the commercialisation of a product or 
service or the development of a promising, high-value business in Australia. 
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What visas are available under the BIIP? 
 
Business Innovation and Investment visa (provisional to permanent) 

o Investor stream: for investors who are willing to invest at least $1.5 million in 
Australian state and territory government bonds for at least four years. 

o Significant Investor stream: for investors who are willing to invest at least $5 million 
in Australia in accordance with the Complying Investment Framework for at least 
four years. 

o Premium Investor stream: for investors who are willing to invest at least $15 million 
in Australia in accordance with the Complying Investment Framework for at least 
one year. 

o Business Innovation stream: for business people who want to operate a business in 
Australia. 

o Entrepreneur stream: for entrepreneurs who have received at least $200,000 from 
an approved third party to undertake an entrepreneurial activity in Australia.  
 

Business Talent visa (direct to permanent residence) 

o Significant Business History stream: for business people with more business 
experience who want to operate a business in Australia. 

o Venture Capital Entrepreneur stream: for entrepreneurs who have received at least 
$1 million in funding from an Australian venture capital firm for a promising high 
value business idea. 

 
 
Since the BIIP was introduced in July 2012 to end of November 2019: 

 
o 1,193 primary provisional Investor visas have been granted, bringing a total 

investment of about 1.79 billion in Australian state and territory government bonds. 
 

o 2,281 primary provisional Significant Investor visas have been granted, bringing a 
total investment of more than 11.4 billion to the Australian economy. 

 
o Significant Investor visa investments have to be made in accordance with the 

Complying Investment Framework (CIF), which requires applicants to invest $5 
million as follows: 

 At least $500,000 (10%) in eligible Australian venture capital or growth 
private equity (VCPE) fund(s) investing in start-up and small private 
companies.  

 At least $1.5 million (30%) in an eligible managed fund(s) or Listed 
Investment Companies (LICs) that invest in emerging companies.  

 A ‘balancing investment’ (i.e. the remaining portion of the $5 million) of up to 
$3 million (60%) in managed fund(s) or LICs that invest in eligible assets, 
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including Australian listed securities, eligible corporate bonds or notes, 
annuities and real property (subject to a 10% limit on residential real estate).  

o The CIF directs parts of the investments to higher risk investments that support 
emerging enterprises, the commercialisation of Australian ideas, and research and 
development. These investments are critical to Australia’s economic growth. 

 

The most current statistics on the website for Significant Investor visa (SIV): 

o As of 31 August 2019: 

 2,236 SIVs have been granted from the commencement of the SIV program 
on 24 November 2012 (1,644 were subject to regulations prior to 1 July 2015 
and 592 were subject to regulations post 1 July 2015). 

 $11.18 billion has been invested in Complying Investments. 
 
The table below shows government sponsor distribution of the SIV for primary applicants between 
1 July and 31 August 2019. 
State Expressions 

of Interest 
submitted  
through 
SkillSelect* 

Invitations Applications 
lodged 

Visas granted 
(application 
lodged prior 
to 1 July 2015) 

Visas granted 
(application 
lodged on or 
after 1 July 
2015) 

Any <5 0 0 0 0 
Austrade 5 <5 <5 0 0 
ACT 5 0 0 0 0 
NSW 163 43 43 0 11 
NT 0 0 0 0 0 
QLD 19 10 <5 0 <5 
SA 15 <5 0 0 0 
TAS 0 0 0 0 0 
VIC 187 25 18 0 10 
WA 18 <5 <5 0 0 
Total 413 83 68 0 23 
* EOI figures as at 31 March 2019. 
 
The table below shows the distribution of primary visa applications and visa grants for the top five 
source countries/regions from the commencement of the SIV program (24 November 2012) to  31 
August 2019. 
 
Applicants – top five 
source countries 

Percentage of total 
visa applications 

Grants – top five 
source countries 

Percentage of total 
visas granted 

China 87.0 China 85.7 
Hong Kong 3.8 Hong Kong 3.3 
Malaysia 1.2 Malaysia 1.7 
South Africa 1.0 South Africa 1.5 
Vietnam 1.0 Vietnam 1.3 

 

Statistics for other BIIP visas are not available on the website.  
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 Assistant Director, Skills and 
Innovation Policy Section 

11 December 2019 

 

Cleared by Title  Time/Date cleared 

 A/g AS, Migration Planning and Visa 
Policy 

11 December 2019 

Peter Richards 

 

Assistant Secretary, Skilled and 
Family Visa Program Branch 

11 December 2019 

   
Data Clearance Data Services Branch 11 December 2019 

 

MO noted Sent to MO Noted by MO 

Full Name   Time DD Month 2018 Time DD Month 2018 
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E: dfat.gov.au
Website: www.homeaffairs.gov.au | hongkong.consulate.gov.au
 
We welcome your feedback on our services - please use the following link:
https://www.homeaffairs.gov.au/about/contact/provide-feedback/compliments-complaints-
suggestions/visa-citizenship-service
 
Please note that we are unable to accept emails with total files size larger than 10mb.  Under current
arrangements, no notification will be generated for emails exceeding 10mb which are not successfully
received.
 

From:  < HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU> 
Sent: Friday, 1 March 2019 8:42 AM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>; 
< HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>;  < dfat.gov.au>; 

 < HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>; 
< HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>;  < HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>
Cc:  < homeaffairs.gov.au>; 
< HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>; 
< HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>
Subject: FW: BIIP fortnightly Telecon 29 Feb 2019 [DLM=For-Official-Use-Only]
 

For-Official-Use-Only
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Important Notice: The content of this email is intended only for use by the individual or
entity to whom it is addressed. If you have received this email by mistake, please advise
the sender and delete the message and attachments immediately.  This email, including
attachments, may contain confidential, sensitive, legally privileged and/or copyright
information.  

Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of this information by persons or
entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited.  The Department of Home Affairs
and ABF respect your privacy and have obligations under the Privacy Act 1988.  

Unsolicited commercial emails MUST NOT be sent to the originator of this email.

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 





Australian Consulate-General Hong Kong
P: +(852) 
Website: www.homeaffairs.gov.au | www.hongkong.consulate.gov.au
 

From:  < dfat.gov.au> 
Sent: Wednesday, 24 April 2019 8:57 AM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>
Subject: your approval for uploading onto ACG website -Gifting arrangements policy [DLM=Sensitive]
 
Sensitive
 
 
Hi
 

 
    

 
 
 
-----------------------------------
 

 

From:  
Sent: Thursday, 18 April 2019 11:09 AM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>
Cc:  < @dfat.gov.au>;  @dfat.gov.au>;  @dfat.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Cleared: Gifting arrangements policy [DLM=Sensitive]
 
Sensitive
 
Hi
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
-----------------------------------
 

 

From:  @HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU> 
Sent: Wednesday, 17 April 2019 2:10 PM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>
Cc:  < @homeaffairs.gov.au>; 

@HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>
Subject: FW: Cleared: Gifting arrangements policy [DLM=Sensitive]
 

Sensitive

Hi 
 
Thank you for all your work on this issue.
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The attached policy document is cleared and can be disseminated to decision makers and agents.
 

 
Kind regards
 

 

Assistant Director | Skilled and Migration Program Section
Skilled and Family Visa Program Branch | Immigration and Visa Services Division
Visa and Citizenship Services Group
Department of Home Affairs
Telephone: 02 
Email @homeaffairs.gov.au
 
 
 

Sensitive

 

This document may contain ‘personal identifiers’ and ‘personal information’ as defined under the Migration Act 1958 or
Australian Citizenship Act 2007, and can only be used for purposes under these Acts. 
Sensitive

 

Important Notice: The content of this email is intended only for use by the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you
have received this email by mistake, please advise the sender and delete the message and attachments immediately.  This
email, including attachments, may contain confidential, sensitive, legally privileged and/or copyright information.  

Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of this information by persons or entities other than the intended
recipient is prohibited.  The Department of Home Affairs and ABF respect your privacy and have obligations under the
Privacy Act 1988.  

Unsolicited commercial emails MUST NOT be sent to the originator of this email.
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For-Official-Use-Only

 

Important Notice: The content of this email is intended only for use by the individual or entity to whom it is
addressed. If you have received this email by mistake, please advise the sender and delete the message and
attachments immediately.  This email, including attachments, may contain confidential, sensitive, legally privileged
and/or copyright information.  

Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient is prohibited.  The Department of Home Affairs and ABF respect your privacy and have
obligations under the Privacy Act 1988.  

Unsolicited commercial emails MUST NOT be sent to the originator of this email.
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From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: FW: SIV application quality? [DLM=For-Official-Use-Only]
Date: Tuesday, 6 August 2019 5:49:10 PM

For-Official-Use-Only
 
Hi
 
The point we would like to put across is that
 

 
         

 
 

         

 
         

 
 

         

 
         

 

 

-----------------------------------
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From:  < homeaffairs.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, 2 August 2019 9:31 AM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>
Subject: RE: SIV application quality? [DLM=For-Official-Use-Only]
 
Thanks 
 

 
Thanks for your help,

____________________________________________

Acting Director | Skills and Innovation Policy Section
Migration Planning and Visa Policy Branch | Immigration and Community Protection Policy
Division 
Department of Home Affairs
P: (02) 
E: homeaffairs.gov.au
 

From:  < dfat.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, 2 August 2019 11:00 AM
To:  < homeaffairs.gov.au>
Subject: RE: SIV application quality? [DLM=For-Official-Use-Only]
 
For-Official-Use-Only
 
Dear 
 

 
Kind regards
 

 
 

Chief Migration Officer
Department of Home Affairs
Australian Consulate-General Hong Kong
P: 
 
Website: www.homeaffairs.gov.au | www.hongkong.consulate.gov.au
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Regards,
 

 
 
 
 

From:  < homeaffairs.gov.au> 
Sent: Wednesday, 31 July 2019 7:21 AM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>
Subject: quick question [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 

UNCLASSIFIED

Hi 
 

 

 

 
Thanks for your help.
 
Cheers
 

 
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
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Investment at paragraphs 149-162 and paragraph 182 respectively.
 
117. After a DI has been made, applicants will need to submit documentary evidence to
demonstrate that the funds used to make the DI are those stipulated in the invitation letter
(unless approval obtained for change of assets). The trail of funds must be reasonably established
with supporting evidence accounting for each step of the way. Applicants should therefore keep
all records involved in the transfer/exchange of funds. For the sake of clarity, it is advisable that
the number of transactions be kept to a minimum.
 
118. Where sufficient funds are already held outside the PRC at the time of application (including
funds already held in Australia), it is expected that applicants will be able to clearly demonstrate,
with supporting evidence, that such funds were accumulated from their qualifying business in the
PRC and/or eligible investment activities and how they were transferred out of the PRC.
 
Direct bank to bank transfer is subject to currency exchange control by the Chinese Government.
We have observed in many instances, that the transfers for the purpose of making Designated
Investment and Significant Complying investment from China is done through International
money remittance agencies.
 
For fund transfers through remittance agencies. There seems to be different standard and
different documentations required to prove the trail of fund. The clients engaging remittance
agencies are expose to the risk of the fund been legitimately transferred from the relevant
source, but the trail of fund documentation is not sufficient to address the Departments
requirement. On a number of cases, the case officers has requested that the remittance agency,
regardless of whether the agency is operating and registered in an overseas jurisdiction (ie. Hong
Kong), proof that they are registered with AUSTRAC. There were also requests for the AUSTRAC
reference number for the transfer.  The request to clarify the policy position was not successful
from the processing area.
 
To ensure that the qualified remittance agency and correct documentation is requested of our
client, I am seeking your assistance to clarify the policy position of the Department with regards
to transfer of money through remittance agencies, in particular:
 

-          Is there specific exclusion for remittance services from a foreign jurisdiction registered
remittance agency (ie Hong Kong)?

-                   Will a registration in a foreign jurisdiction to operate money exchange/remittance
services suffice the Department’s requirement?

-                   What are the documentation requirements, if the fund is transferred from a foreign
registered remittance agency? (There is currently no reporting requirements to
AUSTRAC from the foreign registered remittance agency. Our understand is that the
transaction is reported by the receiving bank in Australia.)

-          Is there a requirement for the remittance agency to be registered with AUSTRAC even if
the agency is based in a foreign jurisdiction?

-          If the transactions is reported with AUSTRAC, is there any specific documentation to be
requested from AUSTRAC via FOI, to satisfy the trail of fund requirements.

-                   What are the documentary requirements, to establish trail of fund from the original
source, to be requested of the remittance agency?

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



In essence, I am seeking policy clarification on the qualification and documentation requirements
from the Department with regards to fund transferred through a remittance agency. This will not
only ensure that the correct information is produced to the Department, but also ensure that
the eligible applicants are not caught in between a rock and a hard place after they have
legitimately transferred the fund to Australia and subsequently face a difficult situation for not
able to meet the processing area’s requirement on trail of fund.
 
I thank you for your time. Pleas feel free to contact me should you require further information or
clarification.
 
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
To: "
Bcc:  
Subject: RE: Your input please integrity and processing times BIIP [DLM=For-Official-Use-Only]
Date: Monday, 11 November 2019 12:48:00 PM

For-Official-Use-Only

 

Hi 

Your list is very comprehensive

Only other thing I can think of is the verification of supporting documents with the issuing
authority, we verify

100% of business ownership docs online

100% of academic qualifications for the application of the Points Test

100% of patents/trademarks for the application of the Points Test

A significant proportion of  bank and tax documents are verified through the issuing authorities’
online verification platform and where there are doubts and in the absence of online verification
tools, we conduct stream 2 referrals.

 

Also of interest is the no. of SIV applications that were withdrawn after the CSI invitation had
been sent – of the 99 withdrawals (cases) processed in HK between July 2018 and June 2019, 22
were withdrawn after applicants had been requested to make the CSI – due to change of
investment intentions/personal circumstances/difficulties with asset liquidation/difficulties with
fund transfer etc.

 

For your consideration.

 

Regards

-----------------------------------
 

Immigration and Border Protection
Department of Home Affairs
Australian Consulate-General Hong Kong
P
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
Sent: Monday, 11 November 2019 7:01 AM

FOI Request FA 20/08/00701 
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nomination criteria.

 

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
Subject: RE: Passport of Convenience [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Tuesday, 26 November 2019 5:30:00 PM

UNCLASSIFIED

Thanks.
 
-----------------------------------
 

 

From:  @dfat.gov.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, 26 November 2019 2:05 PM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>
Cc:  < @dfat.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Passport of Convenience [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 

UNCLASSIFIED

Hi 
 

 
 

 

From:  < dfat.gov.au> 
Sent: Monday, 25 November 2019 3:52 PM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>;  < dfat.gov.au>;

 < dfat.gov.au>;  < dfat.gov.au>; 
@dfat.gov.au>;  @dfat.gov.au>; 

@dfat.gov.au>; @dfat.gov.au>; 
@dfat.gov.au>;  @dfat.gov.au>; @dfat.gov.au>;

@dfat.gov.au>; @dfat.gov.au>; 
@dfat.gov.au>; @dfat.gov.au>; 

@dfat.gov.au>
Cc:  @dfat.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Passport of Convenience [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 

UNCLASSIFIED
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Subject: RE: Passport of Convenience [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 
UNCLASSIFIED
 
Hi All,
 
Please see attached a response we received from Ottawa regarding a recent enquiry we made re

 passports for a temp entry application.
 

.
 

 

 

 

From:  < dfat.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, 22 November 2019 11:13 AM
To:  < dfat.gov.au>;  < dfat.gov.au>
Cc:  < dfat.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Passport of Convenience [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 
UNCLASSIFIED
 

.
 

Department of Home Affairs
Australian Consulate-General Hong Kong
 
www.homeaffairs.gov.au | www.hongkong.consulate.gov.au
 

From:  
Sent: Friday, 22 November 2019 11:10 AM
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. Concerns exist for fraudulently
obtained passports”

·         

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

-----------------------------------
 

Immigration and Border Protection
Department of Home Affairs
Australian Consulate-General Hong Kong
P: +
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
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In the meantime, as this issue comes up quite frequently, we would like to seek PM/Policy view on how
firm we should be in maintaining that remitters for the investment funds  be ones licenced in Australia
to provide remitting services, noting that registering with AUSTRAC is part of the licensing requirement.
 
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

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 




